
JUNE 26, 2023 
REGULAR MEETING 
SAWDON ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
BOARD ROOM 
6:00 PM

Grand Ledge Public Schools

Board of Education



Grand Ledge Public Schools 
 

Regular Meeting 
of the 

Board of Education 
 

Please take notice that the Board of Education will hold a Regular Meeting on: 
 

Date:  Monday, June 26, 2023 
 

Place:  Sawdon Administration Building 
   Board Room 
   220 Lamson Street 

     Grand Ledge, MI  48837  
 

Once the meeting begins, it will be Live Streamed 

at: youtube.com/@GLPS21 (click on Live) 
 

Time:  6:00 p.m.  
 

Purpose:  Truth in Taxation / Truth in Budgeting Hearing  
Limited Tax Pledge & General Business  

 

Phone:  (517) 925-5400 
 

Board minutes are located at the Board of Education office, 220 Lamson 
Street, Grand Ledge, MI  48837 
 
 
  

William A. Barnes, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools 
 

cc: Buildings 
 Board Members 
 Lansing State Journal 
 Melissa Mazzola, President, GLEA  
 Ashleigh Lore, Vice-President, GLEA 

Cindy Zerbe, President, MEA/NEA Unit I, Secretarial /Clerical 
 Denise Truman, President, MEA/NEA Unit III, Food Service 
 Allyson McCann, President, MEA/NEA Unit IV, TA/HC/Bus Assistants & Adv. Club 

Danis Peck, President, IUOE Local 547, A, B, C, E & H AFL-CIO, Bus Drivers 
Kelly LeSatz, President, IUOE Local 324, Custodians 

Date of Posting: June 13, 2023 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting.  Any person with a 
disability needing accommodations to attend a Board of Education meeting should contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at least three (3) days 
prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED 2023-2024 BUDGET 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Monday, June 26, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. in the Board Room at 
the Grand Ledge Administration Building, 220 Lamson Street, Grand Ledge, Michigan the 
Board of Education of Grand Ledge Public Schools will hold a PUBLIC HEARING to 
consider the district’s proposed 2023-2024 budget. 
 
The Board may not adopt its proposed 2023-2024 budget until after a public hearing.  A 
copy of the proposed 2023-2024 budget, including the proposed property tax millage rate, 
is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Grand Ledge Public 
Schools Administration Building, Business Office, 220 Lamson Street, Grand Ledge, 
Michigan. 
 
The property tax millage rate proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget will 
be a subject of this hearing.1 

 

This notice is given by order of the Board of Education. 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Kim Manning, Administrative Assistant to the 
       Grand Ledge Public Schools 
       Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
1This sentence must be printed in 11-point boldfaced type as shown. 



	
	

LIMITED	TAX	PLEDGE	
NOTICE	

	
PLEASE	TAKE	NOTICE	there	will	be	a	Regular	meeting	of	the	Board	of	Education	of	Grand	
Ledge	Public	Schools,	Eaton,	Clinton	and	Ionia	Counties,	Michigan.	
	
At	said	meeting,	the	Board	of	Education	will	consider	for	approval	its	proposed	State	Aid	
Note	(Limited	Tax	–	General	Obligation).		The	proposed	State	Aid	Note	(Limited	Tax	–	
General	Obligation),	if	issued,	will	contain	the	limited	tax	full	faith	and	credit	pledge	of	
Grand	Ledge	Public	Schools,	Eaton,	Clinton	and	Ionia	Counties,	Michigan.		
	
	 DATE	OF	MEETING:	 	 Monday,	June	26,	2023	
	

PLACE OF MEETING: Grand Ledge Administration Building  
Board Room 

     220 Lamson Street 
     Grand Ledge, MI  48837 

	 	
	 TIME	OF	MEETING:	 	 6:00	p.m.	
	
	 TELEPHONE	NUMBER	OF	
	 PRINCIPAL	OFFICE	OF	
	 BOARD	OF	EDUCATION:	 517-925-5401	
	
Board	minutes	are	located	at	the	principal	office	of	the	Board	of	Education	located	at	220	
Lamson	Street,	Grand	Ledge,	MI		48837.	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 ________________________________ 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Kim	Manning,	Administrative	Assistant	to	the	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Grand	Ledge	Public	Schools	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Board	of	Education	



 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segments of the meeting.  If any 
person with a disability needs accommodations at the Board of Education meeting, please contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at 
least three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend. 
 
 

Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, June 26, 2023 
6:00 pm 

 
 

I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance……………………..……….….….Jarrod Smith, President 
 

II. Roll Call……………………………………………………..Dr. William Barnes,  Superintendent 
 

III. Truth in Taxation / Truth in Budgeting Hearing 
 

IV. Approval of Agenda Items 
 

V. Approval of Consent Agenda Items 
A. June 12, 2023 Work Session & Closed Session Minutes 
B. Administrative Contract Renewal 
C. Administrative Hirings 

a. Eric Leopold – Principal – Hayes Intermediate School 
b. Kelly Shumway – Assistant Principal - Beagle Middle School 

D. Teacher Hirings 
Name Building Position Name Building Position 
Karen Almcrantz Holbrook 4th Gr. Brandon Lawler High School Spanish 
Anna Barrett Hayes SpEd Resource Heather Moon Delta Center 3rd Gr. 
Lindsey Boots Holbrook 4th Gr. Margeret Seifert Holbrook Kdg 
Brianna Carver Holbrook Kdg Allyson Scott Holbrook 4th Gr. 
Erin Castillo Holbrook ASD Timothy Shank Hayes Resource Room 
Ann Cooke Holbrook 3rd Gr. Mikayla Silm Hayes ASD 
Teresa Faggion-Reed Hayes 5th Gr. Tanya Smith Beagle Science 
Karlee Fillmore Hayes SpEd Tracy Vincent High School Art 
Paige Fleischer Willow Ridge SpEd Resource Alexa Walter Hayes 6th Gr. 
Ann Goodwin Beagle Science Dylan Winfield Delta Center 4th Gr. 
Jaclyn Hays Willow Ridge Intensive Resource    

 
VI. Reports 

A. Capitol Connections 
B. Eaton RESA 
C. Grand Ledge Education Foundation 
D. Equity, Diversity & Inclusion 
E. Governance Committee 
F. Bond Update 
G. Superintendent 

 

VII. Public Comment  
 

VIII. Old Business 
A. Approval of Final 2022-2023 Budget Amendment Resolutions 
B. Approval of the 2023-2024 Budget Resolutions 
C. Approval of 2023 Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for Eaton, Clinton & Ionia County 
D. Approval of 2023 Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for City of Grand Ledge & Delta Twp. 
E. Approval of Liaison Officer Contract Amendment 

 

IX. New Business 
A. Approval of Voluntary Recognition Resolution 
B. Approval of Resolution Ratifying & Affirming Acceptance of Sale of Bonds Offer 
C. Approval of Instructional Tools 

 

X. Comments from Staff and Board 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 



 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segments of the meeting.  If any 
person with a disability needs accommodations at the Board of Education meeting, please contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at 
least three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend. 
 
 

 
 
 

Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, June 26, 2023 
6:00 pm 

 
 
 

XI. Future Topics 
A. Board Bond Advisory – Monday, July 10, 2023, 5:00 p.m., Sawdon Room 107 
B. Regular Meeting – Monday, July 10, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Board Room (Only one meeting in July.) 

 

XII. Closed Session – Negotiations – Per Section 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976  
 

XIII. Reconvene in Open Session 
 

XIV. Approval of Employee Contracts 
A. Building & Grounds Maintenance Association 
B. Custodial Association 
C. Food Service Unit III, MEA/NEA 

 

XV. Adjournment 

Page 2 of 2 
 



"I pledge allegiance  

to the Flag  

of the United States of America,  

and to the republic  

for which it stands,  

one Nation under God,  

indivisible,  

with liberty and justice for all."

CALL TO ORDER & 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Jarrod Smith

7



ROLL CALL 

Superintendent Dr. William Barnes

8



PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education OPEN the Truth in 
Taxation / Truth in Budgeting Hearing.  

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

Time: ____________________ 

OPEN - TRUTH IN TAXATION/TRUTH IN BUDGETING HEARING

9



PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education CLOSE the                                  
Truth in Taxation / Truth in Budgeting Hearing. 

Time: ___________________ 

CLOSE - TRUTH IN TAXATION / TRUTH IN BUDGETING HEARING

10



PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                                  
June 26, 2023 Agenda Items, as presented. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA ITEMS

11



A.  June 12, 2023 Work Session & Closed Session Minutes* 

B. Administrative Hirings 

C. Administrative Contract Renewal 

D. Teacher Hirings 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                     
June 26, 2023 Consent Agenda Items, as presented. 

*Closed Session Minutes will be at your Board place for review prior to voting and collected after the meeting.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

12



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-12-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 1  
 
  

GRAND LEDGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 Board of Education 
 

 Committee of the Whole / Work Session – June 12, 2023 
 

MINUTES 
 
President Smith called the meeting to order at p.m. He led those present in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Roll Call by Superintendent Bill Barnes indicated the presence of Board Members: Ashley 
Kuykendoll, Ben Cwayna, Denise DuFort, Jon Shiflett, Nicole Shannon, Toni Glasscoe and Jarrod 
Smith Board Members Absent:  None Central Office Administrators: Bill Barnes, Steve Gabriel, 
Wendy Seida, Kelly Jones, Mark Deschaine, Martez Warren and John Ellsworth.  Others in 

Attendance:   Cindy Zerbe, David Logel, Jan Seeger, Sally Jo Nelton, Ashleigh Lore, Melissa 
Mazzola, LeAnn Kirrmann, Kim Laforet, Joel Clark, Andrea Clark, Allyson McCann, Gordon 
VanWieren and Kim Manning 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Secretary Shannon provided an overview for making public comment to the board. 
 
David Logel addressed the board to express his concerns on the Liaison Officer Contract 
Amendment. 
 
Joel Clark addressed the board regarding ABA Therapy and adding a BCBA position in the district. 
 
Andrea Clark addressed the board sharing her family is working with Representative Dievendorf’s 
office on legislation to address barriers to ABA therapy and requested the district to hire a BCBA. 
 
Leanne Kirmann addressed the board seeking information on who is on the health advisory 
committee, if there are any cases in the district where a child has been treated without parent 
consent and is so how many, and how to access policies (school policies) for the new clinic. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. 98B Data Presentation 

Assistant Superintendent for Academic Services, Dr. Steve Gabriel presented the board with a 
detailed overview of the district’s end of year K-8 Math and ELA Goal Report and the High 
School Math and ELA Goal Report respectively noting this is the end of year report.  He 
reminded everyone the mid-year report was presented during the February 13, 2023 meeting. 
 

B. Superintendent Evaluation Update – Community Relations 
Superintendent Barnes provided his update with focus on Staff Relations, Section C of the 
Superintendent’s Evaluation Rubric.  He provided the established goal and the current 
initiatives established under reach of the goals including Staff Feedback, Staff Communication, 
Personnel Matters, Delegation of Duties, Recruitment, Labor Relations (Bargaining), and 
Visibility in the District. 
 
 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-12-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 2  
 
ACTION ITEMS 
A. APPROVAL OF MAY 22, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

Motion by Mrs. DuFort seconded by Mrs. Kuykendoll for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the May 22, 2023 Meeting Minutes, as presented.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

B. APPROVAL OF LIAISON OFFICER CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
Motion by Glasscoe, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of 
Education to approve the Liaison Officer Contract Amendment, as presented, and authorize 
Superintendent Bill Barnes to execute the Contract Amendment on behalf of the district.   
 
Following a detailed discussion among the members, this item was Tabled to the June 26, 
2023 meeting. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF 2023-2024 FOOD SERVICE MEAL PRICES 
Motion by Mr. Shiflett, seconded by Ms. Shannon for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the 2023-2024 Food Service Meal Prices, as presented.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

D. APPROVAL OF WEIGHT ROOM EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 
Motion by Mrs. DuFort, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the Weight Room Equipment Purchase from Rogers Athletic 
Company in the amount of $140,030, using Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Funds, as presented.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

E. APPROVAL OF BID AWARDS – WACOUSTA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Motion by Mr. Cwayna, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve bid awards to Proline Concrete in the amount of $732,860 and 
$394,140 for Concrete Foundations and Flatwork, respectively, Custom Steel in the amount 
of $438,000 for Structural Steel, Schiffer Masonry in the amount of $1,071,000 for 
Masonry, Lansing Glass in the amounts of $325,000 and $487,929 for Metal Panels and 
Glass & Glazing, respectively, Division 7 Construction in the amounts of $195,344 and 
$233,712 for Roofing Shingles and Roofing Membrane, respectively, LJ Trumble in the 
amount of $1,045,000 for General Trades, Grand River Interiors in the amount of 
$2,360,000 for Wood Framing and Trusses, WM Reichenbach in the amount of $842,904 
for Drywall, Insulation and Ceilings, Visual Entities in the amount of $32,603 for Signage, B 
& J Painting in the amount of $150,000 for Painting, Integrity Interiors in the amount of 
$87,820 for Hard Tile, GLFC, Inc. in the amount of $316,205 for Carpet, Base & Flooring, 
Rayhaven in the amount of $83,784 for Lockers, Interkal in the amount of $43,200 for 
Telescoping Bleachers, Architectural Systems Group in the amount of $359,870 for 
Casework, Stafford Smith in the amount of $237,711 for Food Service Equipment, TL 
Contracting in the amount of $115,000 and $1,467,783 for Fencing and Earth Work and 
Utilities, Hunter Prell in the amount of $1,090,000 for Fire Protection, Vander Hyde 
Mechanical in the amount of $915,843 for Plumbing, Professional Thermal in the amount of 
$2,544,860 for HVAC, Ewing Electric in the amount of $2,015,500 for Electrical, LD Clark 
in the amount of $217,365 for Site Concrete, American Asphalt in the amount of $198,715 
for Asphalt Paving, Horrack Nursery in the amount of $149,000 for Landscape, Driesenga 
Associates in the amount of $50,000 for Material Testing and Functional Consulting in the 
amount of $9,490 for Commissioning with a Construction Contingency in the amount 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-12-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 3  
 

$1,239,456 and General Conditions in the amount of $634,635 for a Total Bid Award of 
$20,075,429, as presented. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

F. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF DELTA CENTER LIFE SAFETY INVOICES 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mrs. DuFort for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the Payment of Delta Center Life Safety Invoices in the 
amount of $25,701.30, as presented.   
 
Mr. Shiflett advised the all of the upcoming payment approvals were reviewed by the Board 
Bond Advisory Committee prior to be brought forward for Board Action, including the 
purchase of the weight room equipment and the bid award for Wacousta.  He noted these 
invoices represent work for the Delta Center Fire Suppression. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

G. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF CAPITAL FUNDS INVOICES 
Motion by Mr. Shiflett, seconded by Mrs. Kuykendoll for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the payment of Capital Funds Invoices in the amount of 
$112,247.48, as presented.   
 
Mr. Shiflett noted this represents invoices for allowable expenses at the High School Fine Arts 
renovation. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

H. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF SINKING FUND INVOICES 
Motion by Mrs. DuFort, seconded by Mr. Cwayna for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the payment of Sinking Fund Invoices in the amount of 
$111,187.74, as presented.   
 
Mr. Shiflett noted this represents work related to the Pole Barn. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

I. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 1, SERIES 2 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Dr. Glasscoe for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 1, Series 1 Bond Invoices in the 
amount of $445,232.57, as presented.   

Mr. Shiflett noted this represents bond work at Delta Center.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

J. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 2, SERIES 1 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Dr. Glasscoe, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 2, Series 1 Bond Invoices in the amount of 
$30,439.22, as presented.   
 
Mr. Shiflett noted this represents work at the Beagle pool and track equipment. 
 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-12-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 4  
 

The motion carried unanimously.  
 

K. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 2, SERIES 2 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Ms. Kuykendoll, seconded by Dr. Glasscoe for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices in the 
amount of $311,772.97, as presented.   
 
Mr. Shiflett noted this is for work on the Fine Arts addition. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 

COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND BOARD 
President Smith clarified his comments regarding responding to public comment. 
 
Director of Communications John Ellsworth noted we experienced some technical issues with the 
recording of tonight’s meeting so the view may appear different but ensured the live stream was 
going out and the video will be posted on the website.  He further shared information regarding a 
$5,000 donation to the Beagle library through the National Defense Industrial Association noting 
WILX ran a story covering the donation. 
 
Assistant Superintendent of Academic Services Steve Gabriel commended everyone for the Class 
of 2023 Commencement Ceremony held at the Breslin Center last Friday expressing it was nice to 
be back at the Breslin Center. 
 
Human Resources Director Kelly Jones noted it was almost one year ago today that the board 
accepted her hiring commenting the year has flown by.  She expressed her appreciation to Dr. 
Barnes for taking her under his wing following her hiring in the midst of our former Superintendent’s 
departure and expressing she could not ask for a better person to step into the role of Superintendent 
noting he is an exceptional leader. 
 
Superintendent Barnes commented the Commencement Ceremony was great and congratulated 
our student graduates and all of our staff who assisted in getting our students there. He reminded 
everyone this is the last week of school.  He shared that the Health Care Advisory Team, working 
through a grant and the Eaton RESA includes parents who expressed interest in being a part of the 
planning process and input is being sought from students as well.  He noted Grand Ledge Public 
Schools is not providing health care, sharing we are looking to secure a partner/provider that will 
provide health care services that is housed within the walls of Grand Ledge Public Schools.   
 
Ms. Kuykendoll noted Commencement was spectacular and congratulated all the graduates, their 
family and friends.  She noted in conversations regarding school safety it was not an attack against 
or on anyone and the board is just doing its due diligence and reassuring the board takes school 
safety seriously. 
 
Mrs. DuFort commented graduation is always a highlight of the year noting she loves to hear the 
student speakers.  She commended the Lacrosse team on a great showing. 
 
Ms. Shannon reminded everyone there is still time to sign up for the final Grand Ledge Education 
Foundation Josh Spalsbury Memorial 5K Comet Chase this Saturday noting the Foundation will 
continue on in its fundraising endeavor this is just the last one in Memorial of Josh Spalsbury. 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-12-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 5  
 
 
Dr. Glasscoe commented on the graduation ceremony noting she can envision her grandson 
walking the stage in a couple years.  She went on to share she got the chance to see the Dream 
Depot today during her visit to Wacousta Elementary School.  She thanked the Wacousta staff and 
noted the students were delightful. 
 
President Smith commented graduation is always exciting. 
 
CLOSED SESSION – MATERIAL EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE 
Motion by Mrs. DuFort, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of 
Education to move into Closed Session for the purpose of reviewing Material Exempt from 
Disclosure, as Per Section 8(1)(h) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976 – Written Legal 
Opinion. 
 
     ROLL CALL VOTE 

 
President Smith YES Mrs. DuFort YES 

Dr. Glasscoe YES Mr. Cwayna YES 
Ms. Shannon YES Ms. Kuykendoll YES 

Mr. Shiflett YES   
 

The motion carried unanimously at 8:36 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
The meeting reconvened in Open Session at 9:07 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted:    Attest: 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
Nicole Shannon, Secretary    Jarrod Smith, President 



 
William A. Barnes, Ed.D. / Superintendent of Schools 

220 Lamson Street � Grand Ledge, MI  48837 � (517) 925-5400 � FAX (517) 925-5409 

 
 

TO: Board of Education Members 

FROM: Dr. William A. Barnes, Superintendent of Schools 

RE: Approval of Individual Administrative Contract Extensions 

DATE: June 23, 2023 

 
Administrative Performance Reviews were conducted for all members of the Grand Ledge Public 
Schools Administrative Team for the 2022-2023 school year.  The effectiveness of the administrative 
team was exceptional throughout the school year and therefore I recommend the Board of Education 
grant a one-year extension through June 30, 2024 to the following individuals: 
 
Central Administration 

• Dr. Steve Gabriel, Assistant Superintendent of Academic Services 
• Julie Waterbury, Chief Financial Officer 
• Wendy Seida, Executive Director of Student Services 
• Mark Deschaine, Executive Director of Technology 
• John Ellsworth, Director of Communications 
• Martez Warren, Director of Operations 

 
Building Administration 

• Ken Wright, Grand Ledge High School Principal 
• Blake Wegenke, Grand Ledge High School Assistant Principal 
• Tonya Rice, Grand Ledge High School Assistant Principal 
• David Kushman, Beagle Middle School Principal 
• Scott Millbrook, Hayes Intermediate Assistant Principal 
• Teresa Dyer, Delta Center Elementary Principal 
• William Albrecht, Holbrook Elementary Principal 
• Christopher Groves, Wacousta Elementary Principal 
• Jim Gee, Willow Ridge Elementary Principal 
• Trisha Brentar, Grand Ledge Public Schools Virtual Learning Principal  
• Steve Baker, Director of Athletics 



 
William A. Barnes, Ed.D. / Superintendent of Schools 

220 Lamson Street � Grand Ledge, MI  48837 � (517) 925-5400 � FAX (517) 925-5409 

 
 

TO: Board of Education Members 

FROM: Dr. William A. Barnes, Superintendent of Schools 

RE: Administrative Hiring Recommendation 

DATE: June 23, 2023 

 
Recommendation 
I recommend the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the hiring of Eric Leopold as 
the Principal of Hayes Intermediate School and Kelly Shumway as the Assistant Principal at Beagle 
Middle School. 
 
Background 
As you know, Hayes Intermediate School Principal, Kelly Smith, has announced her retirement from the 
District.  To this end, we posted her position internally and received several letters of interest.  Eric 
Leopold has been with the district since 2019 serving as the Assistant Principal at Beagle.  Eric has 
proven himself to be a great building leader and I believe he is the best candidate to fill the vacancy 
created by Kelly’s retirement.   
 
With Eric moving into the leadership position at Hayes, that left his current Assistant Principal position 
open.  Again, we posted the position and I am thrilled that we have an internal candidate ready to step 
in.  Following a thorough interview process, current Beagle Middle School Science and STEM teacher, 
Kelly Shumway rose to the top as the candidate of choice.  Kelly has been with the district since 2019 
and already holds her School Administrator Certification.  Prior to joining Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Kelly was a long-time teacher with the Lakewood Public Schools.  Additionally, she served as an adjunct 
professor for Physical Science and Biology at Great Lakes Christian College for six years. 
 



May 8, 2023 
 
Mr. David Kushman 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 
600 W. South Street 
Grand Ledge, Michigan 48837 
 
 
Dear Mr. Kushman: 
 
It is with great eagerness that I am applying for the Assistant Principal position at Beagle Middle 
School. With 21 years of teaching experience, curriculum development expertise, and extensive 
building leadership roles, I have the qualifications to promote the district’s goals and philosophy 
across the building’s staff, students, parents, and community. 
 
Currently, I am an 8th grade science and STEM teacher at Beagle Middle School. In my second 
year, I took on the leadership responsibility of Science Department Chair and have become a 
member of the School Leadership Team. With my previous STEM experience, I organized Beagle 
Middle School to participate in an Hour of Code with other schools around the world.  
 
Previous accolades demonstrate my dedication to professional development throughout my 
employment experience. Specific highlights include Grand Ledge Chamber of Commerce 
Teacher of the Year Nominee (2023), Restorative Justice training (2019), the Educator Impact 
Award (2019), MDOT Bridge Challenge Leader (2015-2018), nomination for Michigan Teacher of 
the Year (2013), and selection to serve as Teacher Leader for Math and Science Collaborative 
for Ionia County (2009).  
 
Problem solving skills are paramount in every teaching position and my STEM background would 
bring a unique perspective to this role. My strong communication skills aligned with an organized, 
analytical approach would be an asset in this position. With a strong curriculum background and 
significant instructional experience, I am excited for this opportunity to effectively contribute to the 
educational leadership at Beagle Middle School. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. I look forward to further discussing my qualifications 
with you.  
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Kelly A. Shumway 
shumwayk@glcomets.net 

 
 



Kelly A. Shumway 

 
Home Address:     School Address: 

    Beagle Middle School 
  600 W South Street 

     Grand Ledge, Michigan 48837 
shumwayk@glcomets.net    517-925-5680   
           
    
Educational Background 
 
2020 Educational Leadership Lamar University 

Principal Certification Program 
Michigan School Administrator Certificate  

      
 

2008 Master of Arts  Central Michigan University  

     Masters in Educational Technology 
 
 
2001 Bachelor of Science Central Michigan University 

Science, Mathematics and Middle Level 
Education minors, teaching certificate in 
Science (DX), Mathematics (EX), and Middle 
Level Education 

 
Professional Experience 
 

2019 – Present Teacher, Grand Ledge, Michigan 

 Teacher for 8th grade science and 7th and 8th grade STEM: Design and 
Modeling.  

 Department head chair for Science and member of the School Leadership 
Team, trained in Project Lead the Way, member of the MTSS district wide 
team.  

 Extensively trained in Restorative Justice. 
 

2015 – 2021  Great Lakes Christian College, Lansing, Michigan 

 Adjunct professor for Physical Science in the fall and Biology in the spring 
terms.  

 Responsible for planning and teaching the lecture and laboratory class for 
students in college, freshman through seniors. 

 
2005 – 2019  Lakewood Middle School, Woodland, Michigan 

 Teacher for 8th grade science and 7th and 8th grade STEM.  
 Served as building point of contact for our fifth through eighth grade building, 

school improvement team member, building leadership team member.  



 Implemented a Junior Achievement program for all 8th graders.  
 Chosen to serve as a science teacher leader for the Michigan Math and 

Science Teacher Leadership Collaborative.  
 Chosen to serve on the Vanguard team for training in Apple Laptops.  
 Recipient of the 2019 Impact Educator Award. 
 Coach for an 8th grade Destination Imagination team and also district 

coordinator for Lakewood’s Destination Imagination program, took a team to 
the national competition in Tennessee. 

 Served as 7th and 9th grade basketball coach, 8th grade volleyball coach, and 
participated in development of the 8th grade science curriculum.  

 
 
2001 – 2005  White Pine Academy, Leslie, Michigan 
 Teacher for 7th and 8th grade math and science.  
 Served as member of the technology team and school improvement team. 
 Served as middle school basketball coach. 
 Took over 4th grade classroom in December 2001 before moving to 7th and 8th 

grade. 
 
Certifications 
 
State of Michigan School Administrator Certificate 
 
State of Michigan Professional Certificate: K-8 Self contained, 5-9 Mathematics 
(EX), and 5-9 Science (DX) 
 
Trained in the SAMPI (WMU) Lesson Observation System 
 
Trained in Restorative Justice 
 
Trained in Project Lead the Way: Design and Modeling 
 
Awards 
 
2023 Nominated for GL Chamber of Commerce Educator of the Year 
2019 Educator Impact Award Recipient 
2013 Nominated for Michigan Teacher of the Year 
2009 Nominated for Michigan Science Teacher of the Year for MSTA 
2005 Make a Difference Award Recipient 
 
Professional Development 
 
Fall 2019 
Capturing Kids Hearts 
Restorative Justice Training 
 



Summer 2016 
NGSX Summer Academy Training 
 
Summer 2012-2015  
Carbon Time Pilot Teacher sponsored through Michigan State University and 
National Geographic, attended summer training and monthly online  meetings 
regarding the implementation and effectiveness of the Carbon Time units in the 
classroom 
 
2005-2009 
Problem Based Learning, grant funded through National Science Foundation 
(NSF), East Lansing, Michigan 
 
2008-2010 
Michigan Mathematics and Science Teacher Leadership Collaborative, 
(MMSTLC): attended monthly meetings to develop instructional strategies and 
leadership skills by connecting teachers, administrators, math/science centers, 
and colleges, various locations across Michigan 
 
Summer 2007 
Keystone Center, Key Issues: Bringing Environmental Issues into the Classroom, 
Keystone, Colorado 
 
2006-2007 
Lenses on Learning, Assessment for Learning: Supporting and Enhancing  
Learning for All, Karen Bailey, Lansing, Michigan 
 
Professional Affiliations 
 
Michigan Science Teachers Association (MSTA) 
National Science Teachers Association (NSTA) 
National Staff Development Council (NSDC) 
National Earth Science Teachers Association (NESTA) 
 
Professional Presentations/Publications 
 
Michigan Science Teachers Association (MSTA) 2011: Grand Rapids, Michigan: 
“Transmitting on Line 1” Using Cell Phones in the Classroom to help learning 
 
Fall Science Update 2010: Grand Valley State University, Grand Rapids, 
Michigan: “Problem Based Learning” Using the PBL process to help students 
increase their problem solving skills through real world application 
 
Michigan Science Teachers Association (MSTA) 2009: Detroit, Michigan: 
“Feeling Left Behind? PBL as a Technique for Learning New GLCEs and 
HSCEs” 



 
Ionia and Montcalm Intermediate School Districts: 2009: “Creating Science 
Inquiry in the Physical Science Classroom”  
 
National Staff Development Council (NSDC) 2008: Orlando, Florida: “Problem 
Based Learning – A Tool for Science Teacher Professional Development” 
 
Michigan Science Teachers Association (MSTA) 2008: Lansing, Michigan: 
“Problem Based Learning  Experiences in the Classroom” 
 
Poison Ivy: Teachers Designing a Problem Based Science Unit, Spring, 2008; 
Michigan Science Teachers Association Journal, co-authored with Lee Ballor and 
Jenna Graeber 





































































































































A.  Capitol Connections  

B.   Eaton RESA 

C.   Grand Ledge Education Foundation 

D.  Equity, Diversity & Inclusion 

E.   Governance Committee 

F.   Bond Update 

G.  Superintendent

REPORTS

90



Persons may address the board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting by          
providing your name and jurisdiction (City, Township / County) on one of the Public Comment forms provided at the 
sign in table and turning it in to the Superintendent’s Assistant. 

The meeting chair will use the Public Comment forms submitted to invite persons to come forward to make their  
public comment at the appropriate time. 

Board Meetings are constructed to conduct necessary business of the board, while allowing time for the public to   
express concerns and opinions.   

Out of respect for board members, students and staff, you will be interrupted if you: 
• Personally attack a board member or district employee on issues unrelated to their job performance. 
• Mention a student’s name when discussing behavior or other incidents. 
• Engage in discussion with other members of the audience. 

You will be reminded when you are approaching the end of your three-minute limit so you can conclude with your 
strongest points. 

The board will not respond to questions or comments during public comment but the Superintendent will do his best 
to answer questions at the end of the meeting.  If immediate answers are not available, arrangements will be made to    
provide you with the information requested. 

PUBLIC COMMENT

91



A.  Approval of Final 2022-2023 Budget Amendment Resolutions 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the Final 
2022-2023 Budget Amendment Resolutions, as presented. 

ROLL CALL VOTE

OLD BUSINESS A

92



Original Amended Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 10,624,307$     853,999$             11,478,306$    183,412$        11,661,718$        
300      State 41,804,793 3,815,047 45,619,840 4,099,375 49,719,215
400      Federal 6,892,172 1,371,578 8,263,750 (815,269) 7,448,481

500-600      Incoming Transfers 2,151,706 551,482 2,703,188 2,703,188 4,143,386
     Total Revenues 61,472,978$     6,592,106$         68,065,084$    6,170,706$   72,972,800$        

  EXPENDITURES
  Instruction -

110      Basic Program 29,737,561$     1,784,090$         31,521,651$    1,572,050$   33,093,701$        
120      Added Needs 8,411,731 433,375 8,845,106 (67,489) 8,777,617

 Total Instruction 38,149,292 2,217,465 40,366,757 1,504,561 41,871,318
  Support Services -

210      Pupil 5,008,194 860,470 5,868,664 (140,091) 5,728,573
220      Instructional Staff 2,097,863 340,861 2,438,724 155,766 2,594,490
230      General Administration 747,204 1,105,127 1,852,331 (155,668) 1,696,663
240      School Administration 3,414,579 57,714 3,472,293 129,680 3,601,973
250      Business 652,950 129,832 782,782 58,659 841,441
260      Operations & Maintenance 5,499,246 1,069,032 6,568,278 640,950 7,209,228
270      Transportation 3,889,639 57,886 3,947,525 740,726 4,688,251
280      Central Support Services 1,963,167 (22,404) 1,940,763 575,094 2,515,857
290      Other Support Services 873,029 1,094 874,123 44,539 918,662

 Total Support Services 24,145,871 3,599,612 27,745,483 2,049,655 29,795,138

300      Community Services 14,914 (4,252) 10,662 0 10,662
400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 124,057 385,737 509,794 146,458 656,252

Total Expenditures 62,434,134$     6,198,562$         68,632,696$    3,700,674$   72,333,370$        

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (961,156)$           393,544$             (567,612)$          2,470,032$   639,430$               

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 6,475,986$        6,475,986$       6,475,986$           
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (961,156)              (567,612)             639,430                  

Ending Fund Balance 5,514,830$        5,908,374$       7,115,416$           

    Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 8.97% 8.68% 9.75%

Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures 8.83% 8.61% 9.84%

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools General Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 947,803$      830$               948,633$      
300      State 87,186 86,024 173,210
400      Federal 1,007,373 183,984 1,191,357

500-600      Incoming Transfers -                           6,000 6,000
     Total Revenues 2,042,362$ 276,838$     2,319,200$ 

  EXPENDITURES
290      Other Support Services 2,074,005$ 18,280$        2,092,285$ 

 Total Support Services 2,074,005 18,280 2,092,285

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications -                           190,000 190,000

Total Expenditures 2,074,005$ 208,280$     2,282,285$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (31,643)$       68,558$        36,915$         

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 714,848$      714,848$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (31,643)          36,915            

Ending Fund Balance 683,205$      751,763$      

    Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 33.45% 32.41%

Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures 32.94% 32.94%

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools Food Service Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 9,920,000$ 38,000$        9,958,000$ 

300      State -                           -                           

400      Federal -                           -                           

     Total Revenues 9,920,000$ 38,000$        9,958,000$ 

  EXPENDITURES
250      Business 2,000$            1,000$           3,000$            

510     Debt Service 10,089,700 3,300 10,093,000

Total Expenditures 10,091,700 4,300 10,096,000

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (171,700)$    33,700$        (138,000)$    

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 2,141,380$ 2,141,380$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (171,700)       (138,000)       

Ending Fund Balance 1,969,680$ 2,003,380$ 

    

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT

Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 

Grand Ledge Public Schools Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 430,000$      60,000$        490,000$      
300      State 0 0
400      Federal 0 0

     Total Revenues 430,000$      60,000$        490,000$      

  EXPENDITURES
290      Other Support Services 430,000$      60,000$        490,000$      

 Total Support Services 430,000 60,000 490,000

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 430,000$      60,000$        490,000$      

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -$                  -$                 -$                  

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 499,020$      499,020$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -                     -                     

Ending Fund Balance 499,020$      499,020$      

    

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Student Activity Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 5,500$                                          137,500$          143,000$            
300      State -                                                         
400      Federal -                                                         -                               -                                 

     Total Revenues 5,500$                                          137,500$          143,000$            

  EXPENDITURES
220      Instructional Staff -$                                                70,000$             70,000$               
280      Central Support Services 550,000                                       (550,000) -                                 

 Total Support Services 550,000                                       (480,000)           70,000                  

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 500,000 2,966,000 3,466,000

Total Expenditures 1,050,000$                               2,486,000$     3,536,000$        

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (1,044,500)$                              (2,348,500)$    (3,393,000)$      

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 6,881,034$                               6,881,034$        
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (1,044,500)                                 (3,393,000)         

Ending Fund Balance 5,836,534$                               3,488,034$        

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools General Capital Projects Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 2,030,030$ 469,970$      2,500,000$ 
300      State
400      Federal 740,000 590,400 1,330,400

     Total Revenues 2,770,030$ 1,060,370$ 3,830,400$ 

  EXPENDITURES
  Instruction -

100      Basic Program 1,224,340$ 25,660$         1,250,000$ 
220      Instructional Staff 283,775 26,225 310,000
300      Community Services 1,248,532 171,468 1,420,000

Total Expenditures 2,756,647$ 223,353$      2,980,000$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures 13,383$         837,017$      850,400$      

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 172,404$      172,404$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures 13,383            850,400         

Ending Fund Balance 185,787$      1,022,804$ 

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools Community Education Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Amended Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 10,624,307$     853,999$             11,478,306$    183,412$        11,661,718$        
300      State 41,804,793 3,815,047 45,619,840 4,099,375 49,719,215
400      Federal 6,892,172 1,371,578 8,263,750 (815,269) 7,448,481

500-600      Incoming Transfers 2,151,706 551,482 2,703,188 2,703,188 4,143,386
     Total Revenues 61,472,978$     6,592,106$         68,065,084$    6,170,706$   72,972,800$        

  EXPENDITURES
  Instruction -

110      Basic Program 29,737,561$     1,784,090$         31,521,651$    1,572,050$   33,093,701$        
120      Added Needs 8,411,731 433,375 8,845,106 (67,489) 8,777,617

 Total Instruction 38,149,292 2,217,465 40,366,757 1,504,561 41,871,318
  Support Services -

210      Pupil 5,008,194 860,470 5,868,664 (140,091) 5,728,573
220      Instructional Staff 2,097,863 340,861 2,438,724 155,766 2,594,490
230      General Administration 747,204 1,105,127 1,852,331 (155,668) 1,696,663
240      School Administration 3,414,579 57,714 3,472,293 129,680 3,601,973
250      Business 652,950 129,832 782,782 58,659 841,441
260      Operations & Maintenance 5,499,246 1,069,032 6,568,278 640,950 7,209,228
270      Transportation 3,889,639 57,886 3,947,525 740,726 4,688,251
280      Central Support Services 1,963,167 (22,404) 1,940,763 575,094 2,515,857
290      Other Support Services 873,029 1,094 874,123 44,539 918,662

 Total Support Services 24,145,871 3,599,612 27,745,483 2,049,655 29,795,138

300      Community Services 14,914 (4,252) 10,662 0 10,662
400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 124,057 385,737 509,794 146,458 656,252

Total Expenditures 62,434,134$     6,198,562$         68,632,696$    3,700,674$   72,333,370$        

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (961,156)$           393,544$             (567,612)$          2,470,032$   639,430$               

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 6,475,986$        6,475,986$       6,475,986$           
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (961,156)              (567,612)             639,430                  

Ending Fund Balance 5,514,830$        5,908,374$       7,115,416$           

    Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 8.97% 8.68% 9.75%

Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures 8.83% 8.61% 9.84%

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools General Fund for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 1,000$            67,500$        68,500$         
300      State -                           -                           
400      Federal -                           -                           

     Total Revenues 1,000$            67,500$        68,500$         

  EXPENDITURES
280     Central Support Services -$                  -$                  
450      Improvements 5,711,876    5,711,876    

 Total Support Services 5,711,876    5,711,876    

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0 0

Total Expenditures 5,711,876$ 5,711,876$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures ########### ###########

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 6,711,527$ 6,711,527$ 
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (5,710,876)   (5,643,376)   

Ending Fund Balance 1,000,651$ 1,068,151$ 

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2019 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 2 for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 100$                800$                    
300      State -                           -                              
400      Federal -                           -                              

     Total Revenues 100$                800$                    

  EXPENDITURES
280     Central Support Services -$                  -$                     
450      Improvements 279,885         4,225,000        

 Total Support Services 279,885         4,225,000        

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0 0

Total Expenditures 279,885$      4,225,000$     

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (279,785)$    (4,224,200)$   

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 4,409,022$ 4,409,022$     
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (279,785)       (4,224,200)      

Ending Fund Balance 4,129,237$ 184,822$         

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2021 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 2 for fiscal year 2022-23



Original Final
2022-23 Increase 2022-23
  Budget (Decrease)   Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local -$                  24,714,204$      
300      State -                           -                                   
400      Federal -                           -                                   

     Total Revenues -$                  24,714,204$      

  EXPENDITURES
250      Business -$                  133,858$              
450      Improvements -                           3,500,000            

 Total Support Services -                           3,500,000            

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0 0

Total Expenditures -$                  3,500,000$         

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -$                  21,214,204$      

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2022 -$                  -$                          
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -                     21,214,204         

Ending Fund Balance -$                  21,214,204$      

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is amended as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2023 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 1 for fiscal year 2022-23



B.  Approval of the 2023-2024 Budget Resolutions 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
2023-2024 Debt Service, Food Service, Student Activity, General Capital Projects, School Store,   
Sinking Fund, Community Education, 2019 Proposal 2, 2021 Proposal 1, 2021 Proposal 2, 2023   
Proposal 1 and General Fund Budget Resolutions, as presented. 

ROLL CALL VOTE

OLD BUSINESS B

103



General Fund Budget 2023-24  

Grand Ledge Public Schools 

For Action 6-26-2023 

 

BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 

 

  Final 2022-23 Proposed 2023-24  

Foundation Allowance $9,150  $9,608  

Membership blend 
90% fall 2022/10% spring 

2022 

90% fall 2023/10% spring 

2023 

Current year Fall student FTE 5,069.95 5,070.85 

Prior year Spring student FTE 4,879.04 5,089.85 

Sec 23a dropout recovery count 18.17 0.00 

Blended student count  5,069.03 5,072.75 

 

REVENUE 

General fund revenues for the 2023-24 year are projected to equal approximately $72.1 million.   The 

following factors contributed to the revenue projection: 

• The District’s State revenues will increase by approximately $2,700,000 during FY 2024 based 

upon the Governor’s proposed $458 per pupil increase in the foundation allowance. 

• Federal revenues will decrease by $3,000,000 due the use of the majority of our ESSER funds in 

FY 2023.  Many of these one-time funds were utilized to supplant on-going expenditures as the 

District rebounded from the impact of the pandemic. 

• Incoming transfers will decrease in FY 2024 due to the transfer of the GECKO program revenue, 

and the associated revenues, to Eaton RESA. 

EXPENDITURES 

General fund expenditures are projected to remain fairly steady in FY 2024.  The following factors 

contributed to the expenditure projection: 

• Employee compensation costs are projected to increase by approximately $1.5 million due to 

salary step increases, ORS retirement rate increases and contract settlements. 

• New staff positions for FY 2024 include an elementary ASD program special education teacher, a 

dean/student support position for Beagle Middle School and an additional early childhood 

special education teacher. 

• Additional contracted services for 2023-24 include a school resource officer for Beagle Middle 

School. 



• All buildings and departments made reductions in expenditures based upon their percentage of 
the total budget.  Reductions include employee attrition in teaching, teaching assistant and 
secretarial staff. 

• District programming changes include the elimination of the elementary distance learning 
program and a reduction in the use of substitute teachers and employee extra duty 
assignments. 

FUND BALANCE 

The original budget adoption for 2023-24 calls for a basically break-even position leaving the District 
with a projected ending fund balance of $7,131,000 as of June 30, 2024.  This fund balance level 
represents 9.89% of revenues, the measurement utilized by the Department of Treasury for early 
warning monitoring, and 9.89% of expenditures, the measurement utilized by Board Governance Policy 
EL 404. 

 



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 11,733,606$        
300      State 52,432,134
400      Federal 4,426,481

500-600      Incoming Transfers 3,546,682
     Total Revenues 72,138,903$        

  EXPENDITURES
  Instruction -

110      Basic Program 32,727,408$        
120      Added Needs 9,043,965

 Total Instruction 41,771,373
  Support Services -

210      Pupil 5,598,185
220      Instructional Staff 2,838,604
230      General Administration 1,676,268
240      School Administration 3,498,264
250      Business 828,895
260      Operations & Maintenance 7,564,228
270      Transportation 4,914,251
280      Central Support Services 1,927,093
290      Other Support Services 918,662

 Total Support Services 29,764,450

300      Community Services 10,662
400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 576,879

Total Expenditures 72,123,364$        

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures 15,539$                   

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 7,115,416$           
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures 15,539                      

Ending Fund Balance 7,130,955$           

    Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 9.89%

Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures 9.89%

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools General Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 968,633$      
300      State 100,210
400      Federal 1,018,003

500-600      Incoming Transfers 6,000
     Total Revenues 2,092,846$ 

  EXPENDITURES
290      Other Support Services 2,194,628$ 

 Total Support Services 2,194,628

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 2,194,628$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (101,782)$    

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 751,763$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (101,782)       

Ending Fund Balance 649,981$      

    Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 31.06%

Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures 29.62%

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools Food Service Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 10,534,000$    
300      State -                                
400      Federal -                                

     Total Revenues 10,534,000$    

  EXPENDITURES
250      Business 2,500$                 
510     Debt Service 10,741,453

Total Expenditures 10,743,953

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (209,953)$          

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 2,003,380$       
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (209,953)             

Ending Fund Balance 1,793,427$       

    

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 430,000$      
300      State 0
400      Federal 0

     Total Revenues 430,000$      

  EXPENDITURES
290      Other Support Services 430,000$      

 Total Support Services 430,000

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 430,000$      

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -$                  

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 499,020$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -                     

Ending Fund Balance 499,020$      

    

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Student Activity Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 140,000$                                         
300      State -                                                              
400      Federal -                                                              

     Total Revenues 140,000$                                         

  EXPENDITURES
220      Instructional Staff 100,000$                                         
280      Central Support Services 100,000                                            

 Total Support Services 200,000                                            

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 500,000

Total Expenditures 700,000$                                         

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (560,000)$                                       

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 3,488,034$                                    
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (560,000)                                          

Ending Fund Balance 2,928,034$                                    

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools General Capital Projects Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 20,000$         
300      State 0
400      Federal 0

     Total Revenues 20,000$         

  EXPENDITURES
290      Other Support Services 20,000$         

 Total Support Services 20,000

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 20,000$         

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -$                  

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 23,406$         
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -                     

Ending Fund Balance 23,406$         

    Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 117.03%

Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures 117.03%

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools School Store Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 1,395,000$ 
300      State 0
400      Federal 0

     Total Revenues 1,395,000$ 

  EXPENDITURES
450      Improvements 1,395,000$ 

 Total Support Services 1,395,000

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 1,395,000$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -$                  

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 2,479,930$ 
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures -                     

Ending Fund Balance 2,479,930$ 

    

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools Sinking Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 2,100,000$ 
300      State
400      Federal 0

     Total Revenues 2,100,000$ 

  EXPENDITURES
  Instruction -

100      Basic Program 1,215,350$ 
220      Instructional Staff 275,775
300      Community Services 1,248,532

Total Expenditures 2,739,657$ 

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (639,657)$    

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 1,022,804$ 
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (639,657)       

Ending Fund Balance 383,147$      

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools Community Education Fund for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 1,000$                  
300      State -                                 
400      Federal -                                 

     Total Revenues 1,000$                  

  EXPENDITURES
280     Central Support Services -$                        
450      Improvements 1,069,151          

 Total Support Services 1,069,151          

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 1,069,151$       

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (1,068,151)$      

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 1,068,151$       
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (1,068,151)         

Ending Fund Balance -$                        

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2019 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 2 for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 25,000$                
300      State -                                  
400      Federal -                                  

     Total Revenues 25,000$                

  EXPENDITURES
280     Central Support Services -$                         
450      Improvements 15,000,000         

 Total Support Services 15,000,000         

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 15,000,000$      

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (14,975,000)$    

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 19,481,754$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (14,975,000)       

Ending Fund Balance 4,506,754$         

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2021 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 1 for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 25,000$                
300      State -                                  
400      Federal -                                  

     Total Revenues 25,000$                

  EXPENDITURES
280     Central Support Services -$                         
450      Improvements 15,000,000         

 Total Support Services 15,000,000         

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 15,000,000$      

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (14,975,000)$    

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 19,481,754$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (14,975,000)       

Ending Fund Balance 4,506,754$         

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2021 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 1 for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 100$                
300      State -                           
400      Federal -                           

     Total Revenues 100$                

  EXPENDITURES
280     Central Support Services -$                  
450      Improvements 184,922         

 Total Support Services 184,922         

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 184,922$      

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (184,822)$    

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 184,822$      
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (184,822)       

Ending Fund Balance -$                  

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2021 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 2 for fiscal year 2023-24



Original
2023-24
  Budget

Code#
  REVENUES

100      Local 300,000$                
300      State -                                     
400      Federal -                                     

     Total Revenues 300,000$                

  EXPENDITURES
250      Business -$                            
450      Improvements 11,500,000           

 Total Support Services 11,500,000           

400-600      Outgoing Transfers & Fund Modifications 0

Total Expenditures 11,500,000$        

Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (11,200,000)$       

FUND BALANCE INFORMATION

Fund Balance at July 1, 2023 21,214,204$        
Amount by which Revenues Exceed Expenditures (11,200,000)          

Ending Fund Balance 10,014,204$        

ADOPTED this 26th day of June, 2023

is adopted as follows:

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of 

Grand Ledge Public Schools

RESOLVED, that the General Appropriations Act for the 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 2023 Capital Projects Fund Proposal 1 for fiscal year 2023-24



C.  Approval of 2023 Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for Eaton, Clinton & Ionia County 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 2023 
Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029), for Eaton, Clinton & Ionia County, as presented.

OLD BUSINESS C

119



Michigan Department of Treasury This form is issued under MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 ORIGINAL TO:  County Clerk(s)
614 (2-02) and 211.34d.  Filing is mandatory; Penalty applies. COPY TO:  Equalization Dept.(s)

TAX RATE REQUEST COPY TO:  Each Twp or City Clerk
MILLAGE REQUEST REPORT TO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

You must complete this form for each unit of government for which a property tax is levied.  Penalty for non-filing is provided under MCL Sec. 211.119.
The following tax rates have been authorized for levy on the 2022 tax roll.

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

2021 2022 2022 Millage Millage
Millage Millage Rate HEADLEE Millage Rate Sec. 211.34 Maximum Requested Requested Expiration 

Authorized Permanently Millage Permanently Millage Allowable to be to be Date of
Date of by Election, Reduced by Reduction Reduced by Rollback Millage Levied Levied Millage
Election Charter, etc. MCL 211.34d Fraction MCL 211.34d Fraction Rate* July 1 Dec. 1 Authorized

Prepared by Telephone Number Title Date

Clerk Signature Type Name Date

X Secretary 6/26/2023
Chairperson Signature Type Name Date

X President 6/26/2023

6.0000      
18.0000    

** IMPORTANT:  See instructions on the reverse side for the correct method of calculating the millage rate in column (5).

L-4029
2022

County 2022 Taxable Value

Eaton, Clinton, Ionia 1,889,966,242                                                                             
Local Government Unit (County, Township, City, Village, K-12 School District, ISD, CC, or ANY Authority such as District 
Library, DDA, etc.)

For LOCAL School Districts: Taxable Value excluding Principal Residence, Qualified Ag, 
Qualified Forest, Industrial Personal and Commercial Personal Properties.

Grand Ledge Public Schools 643,953,678                                                                                

Purpose of
Source Millage

Voted NH Oper 11/04/2014 19.5580 18.8899 1.0000 18.8899 1.0000 18.8899 18.0000 2024

Voted Sinking ALL 11/02/2021 0.7921 0.7921 1.0000 0.7921 1.0000 0.7921 0.7921 2024

Voted
'15 Ref of '05 Ref of '95 Ref of 

1994 Debt 1994 1.3200 1.3200 1.3200 1.8800 2024

Voted '16 Ref of 2007 Debt 05/08/2007 0.9000 0.9000 0.9000 1.3900 2037

Voted 2019 Series I of 2018 Debt 11/06/2018 1.5800 1.5800 1.5800 1.2900 2044

Voted 2021 Series II of 2018 Debt 11/06/2018 1.1700 1.1700 1.1700 1.0700 2047

Voted 2023 Series III of 2018 Debt 11/06/2018 0.6600 0.6600 0.6600 0.6600 2047

0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000

For Commercial Personal

Julie Waterbury (517) 925-5422 Chief Financial Officer 6/26/2023

Certification: As the representatives for the local government unit named above, we certify that these requested tax levy rates have been reduced, if 
necessary, to comply with the state constitution (Article 9, Section 31), and that the requested levy rates have also been reduced, if necessary, to comply 
with MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34, and for LOCAL school districts which levy a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage, MCL 380.1211(3).

Local School District Use Only. Complete if requesting millage 
to be levied. See STC Bulletin 2 of 2008 for instructions on 
completing this section.

For All Other

Total School District Operating Rates to be 
Levied (Supp/HH and NH Oper ONLY) RateNicole Shannon

For Principal Residence, Qualified Ag, 
Qualified Forest and Industrial Personal -            

Jarrod Smith

*Under Truth in Taxation, MCL Section 211.24e, the governing body may decide to levy a rate which will not exceed the maximum 
authorized rate allowed in column 9.  A public hearing and determination is required for an operating levy which is larger than the base tax 
rate but not larger than the rate in column 9.



D.  Approval of 2023 Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for City of Grand Ledge & Delta Twp 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 2023 
Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for the City of Grand Ledge and Delta Township, as presented.

OLD BUSINESS D

121



Michigan Department of Treasury This form is issued under MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 ORIGINAL TO:  County Clerk(s)
614 (2-02) and 211.34d.  Filing is mandatory; Penalty applies. COPY TO:  Equalization Dept.(s)

TAX RATE REQUEST COPY TO:  Each Twp or City Clerk
MILLAGE REQUEST REPORT TO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

You must complete this form for each unit of government for which a property tax is levied.  Penalty for non-filing is provided under MCL Sec. 211.119.
The following tax rates have been authorized for levy on the 2023 tax roll.

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

2022 2023 2023 Millage Millage
Millage Millage Rate HEADLEE Millage Rate Sec. 211.34 Maximum Requested Requested Expiration 

Authorized Permanently Millage Permanently Millage Allowable to be to be Date of
Date of by Election, Reduced by Reduction Reduced by Rollback Millage Levied Levied Millage
Election Charter, etc. MCL 211.34d Fraction MCL 211.34d Fraction Rate* July 1 Dec. 1 Authorized

Prepared by Telephone Number Title Date

Clerk Signature Type Name Date

X Secretary 6/26/2023
Chairperson Signature Type Name Date

X President 6/26/2023

6.0000      
18.0000    

** IMPORTANT:  See instructions on the reverse side for the correct method of calculating the millage rate in column (5).
For All Other

Nicole Shannon

2023 Taxable Value

1,889,966,242                                                                             
For LOCAL School Districts: Taxable Value excluding Principal Residence, Qualified Ag, 
Qualified Forest, Industrial Personal and Commercial Personal Properties.

643,953,678                                                                                

Eaton (Delta Twp and City of Grand Ledge ONLY)

1.0000

11/02/2021

Local School District Use Only. Complete if requesting millage 
to be levied. See STC Bulletin 2 of 2008 for instructions on 
completing this section.

Total School District Operating Rates to be 
Levied (Supp/HH and NH Oper ONLY) Rate

For Principal Residence, Qualified Ag, 
Qualified Forest and Industrial Personal -            
For Commercial Personal

2023

Local Government Unit (County, Township, City, Village, K-12 School District, ISD, CC, or ANY Authority such as District 
Library, DDA, etc.)

Grand Ledge Public Schools

County

*Under Truth in Taxation, MCL Section 211.24e, the governing body may decide to levy a rate which will not exceed the maximum 
authorized rate allowed in column 9.  A public hearing and determination is required for an operating levy which is larger than the base tax 
rate but not larger than the rate in column 9.

Certification: As the representatives for the local government unit named above, we certify that these requested tax levy rates have been reduced, if 
necessary, to comply with the state constitution (Article 9, Section 31), and that the requested levy rates have also been reduced, if necessary, to comply 
with MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34, and for LOCAL school districts which levy a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage, MCL 380.1211(3).

0.7921 1.0000

18.889911/04/2014

1.0000

19.5580

05/08/2007

11/06/2018

11/06/2018

1994

11/06/2018

18.8899

1.3200

0.9000

1.5800

1.1700

0.7921

0.6600

1.0000

1.3200

1.5800

0.0000

1.5800

1.1700

0.0000

0.0000

1.1700

0.0000

18.0000

0.3960

0.6600

0.45000.9000

0.0000

18.8899

0.7921

1.3200

0.9000

0.3961

0.6600

0.4500

Jarrod Smith

Julie Waterbury

L-4029

0.0000

0.7900

0.5850

0.7900

0.5850

0.7921

Chief Financial Officer(517) 925-5422

2024

2024

2024

2037

2044

2047

6/26/2023

NH OperVoted

Source Millage
Purpose of

Voted Sinking ALL

Voted
'15 Ref of '05 Ref of '95 Ref of 

1994 Debt

Voted 2021 Series II of 2018 Debt

Voted '16 Ref of 2007 Debt

Voted 2019 Series I of 2018 Debt

Voted 2023 Series III of 2018 Debt 20470.6600 0.6600 0.3300 0.3300



E.  Approval of Liaison Officer Contract Amendment 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the      
Liaison Officer Contract Amendment, as presented, and authorize Superintendent Bill Barnes to      
execute the Contract Amendment on behalf of the district.

OLD BUSINESS E

123



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE   
AGREEMENT FOR POLICE SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF GRAND LEDGE AND   

GRAND LEDGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION   
  

  THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“FIRST AMENDMENT”) to the initial AGREEMENT dated  

June 1, 2022 (“AGREEMENT”), is made and entered into as of the 1st day of ___________, 2023, by 

and between, the CITY OF GRAND LEDGE, a Michigan home rule city, whose address is 310 

Greenwood Street, Grand Ledge, MI 48837 (hereinafter the “City”) and GRAND LEDGE 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, a Michigan general powers school district, 

whose address is 220 Lamson Street, Grand Ledge, MI 48837 (hereinafter, the “School 

District”)(individually a “Party”, collectively, the “Parties”).   

  WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the AGREEMENT on June 1, 2022, to provide for the 

assignment of a Grand Ledge Police Department officer to the School District to improve school 

safety and the educational climate of the School by assisting in the maintenance of security for 

school staff, students, facilities, and the community.   

   WHEREAS, the Parties desire to restate the June 1, 2022 Agreement except where 

amended herein by this FIRST AMENDMENT 

WHEREAS, all provisions of the AGREEMENT, which do not conflict with this FIRST 

AMENDMENT, shall remain in full force and effect. 

  NOW THEREFORE it is mutually agreed as follows:  

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated in and form a part of this 

FIRST AMENDMENT.  



FIRST AMENDMENT to the Agreement For Police 
Services Between City of Grand Ledge through its 

Police Department and Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education.  

  
Page 2  

  

2. Number of School Resource Officers and Location of Services.  In addition to the 

officer assigned to the School District as a School Resource Officer (“SRO”) pursuant to the 

AGREEMENT, the Grand Ledge Police Department will assign one (1) officer to, but not limited 

to, the School District’s Beagle Middle School as an SRO.  Further, this FIRST AMENDMENT 

permits the City’s Manager and the School District’s Superintendent to determine SROs and their 

service location assignments to other School District facilities located within the School District, 

as mutually agreed upon – that shall be memorialized in writing (“writing”) as authorized by and 

between the City’s Manager, or designee in his/her absence, and the School District’s 

Superintendent, or designee in his/her absence.  Any such writing shall be attached to this FIRST 

AMENDMENT and binding upon Parties.   

3. Compensation.  The School District shall compensate the City the cost of the 

second or subsequent SRO as follows:  

A. The School District shall compensate wages, benefits, and necessary equipment, except 

as identified in paragraph 4 of this FIRST AMENDMENT, in a fixed amount of $135,000 

for each of the three years of the FIRST AMENDMENT.   

B. It is understood and agreed that the compensation levels set forth above may be 

adjusted by the City due to changes in applicable collective bargaining agreements. No 

adjustment charged to the School District shall exceed a 2.5% total compensation 

increase, and any adjustment shall be communicated with the School District in writing 

upon ratification of the collective bargaining agreement. 



FIRST AMENDMENT to the Agreement For Police 
Services Between City of Grand Ledge through its 

Police Department and Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education.  

  
Page 3  

  
C. Notwithstanding paragraph 3, subparagraph A. above, the School District agrees 

to actively pursue federal and state grants or other funding to compensate the City for 

the cost of all SROs up to the total cost of said SRO, to include 100% of salary, fringe, 

training, and equipment for any position not already compensated for at 100%.     

D. The School District shall remit its portion of said payment to the City not later than 

the 10th day of the month of the invoice period in the amount of the annual cost divided 

by the three (3) calendar months (i.e., quarterly payments).    

4. Police Uniforms, Equipment, Vehicle, Police Training, Insurance.  The City 

through its Grand Ledge Police Department shall provide the cost of uniforms, police equipment, 

a vehicle, and police training.  Further, all SROs shall be insured through the City’s applicable 

insurance policies.  

5. Term.  The term of this FIRST AMENDMENT shall be three (3) years commencing  

July 1, 2023; however, either party may terminate this FIRST AMENDMENT for any reason by 

providing written notice of intent to terminate at least one  (1) year prior to the anniversary date, 

i.e., June 1 of any of the three years.  The AGREEMENT shall be extended accordingly and run 

concurrently with the FIRST AMENDMENT.   

6. Binding Effect; Authority to Sign.  This FIRST AMENDMENT shall be binding  

upon the parties and their successors and assigns, and the parties executing this FIRST 

AMENDMENT certify that they have been and are duly authorized by the respective parties to 

execute this FIRST AMENDMENT and to bind the parties to the terms hereof.  



FIRST AMENDMENT to the Agreement For Police 
Services Between City of Grand Ledge through its 

Police Department and Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education.  

  
Page 4  

  
7. No Defense Nor Indemnification.  Neither party shall defend nor indemnify the 

other party for acts or omissions under this FIRST AMENDMENT.    

8. Venue and Jurisdiction. Any litigation of this FIRST AMENDMENT shall be  

heard in the state courts of Eaton County, State of Michigan. Each party shall be responsible for 

its individual expenses, including actual attorney fees, witness fees, or other costs related to this 

amendment.  

9. MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS.  No modifications or amendments of 

this FIRST AMENDMENT shall be valid unless they are in writing and signed by the duly 

authorized representatives of both parties.  This FIRST AMENDMENT shall be deemed to have 

been made in and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. 

10. Mutual Draftsmanship.  This FIRST AMENDMENT will be construed for all  

purposes as having been drafted jointly by the parties hereto.  

11. No Waiver of Defenses.  By entering into this FIRST AMENDMENT, neither party 

is waiving any defenses, including the defense of governmental immunity.  

12. No Third-Party Rights.  Nothing in this FIRST AMENDMENT shall provide any  

rights to any third party who is not a party to this amendment.  

13. Counterparts.  This FIRST AMENDMENT may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and 

the same amendment. 

[Signatures on the Following Page] 



FIRST AMENDMENT to the Agreement For Police 
Services Between City of Grand Ledge through its 

Police Department and Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education.  

  
Page 5  

  
 

    
  



FIRST AMENDMENT to the Agreement For Police 
Services Between City of Grand Ledge through its 

Police Department and Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education.  

  
Page 6  

  

   IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this FIRST AMENDMENT on the 

dates set forth opposite the signatures of the parties.  

        

  

  

      CITY OF GRAND LEDGE,   

a Michigan municipal corporation,  

Dated:  _______ ____, 2023      By:  ______________________________  

        

  

And:  

      Adam R. Smith, City Manager  

        

  

  

      GRAND LEDGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS,   
a Michigan general powers school district  

Dated:  _______ ____, 2023      By:  ___________________________________  

              William A. Barnes, Superintendent  
 

 

   

   



A.  Approval of Voluntary Recognition Resolution 

The board must select the appropriate motion based on discussion among the members. 

Option #1 - PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education    
approve the Voluntary Recognition Resolution denying the Teamster’s request for voluntary                      
recognition, but Teamsters may seek exclusive bargaining representative status by pursuing a union 
election through the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, which election process contains 
procedural safeguards to ensure employee free choice. 

Option #2 - PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education grant 
Teamster’s request for voluntary recognition, provided Teamster’s request is limited to the same           
bargaining unit previously represented by IOUE Local 324, and the District’s Superintendent or              
designee confirms that the signatures on the above-mentioned list are that of a majority of the            
District’s bus drivers.

NEW BUSINESS A

130



 

1 
 

VOLUNTARY RECOGNITION RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the Grand Ledge Public Schools (“District”) Board of Education 
(“Board”) was held on the 26th day of June, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

The meeting was called to order by President Jarrod Smith.  
 
Present: Members 
 
Absent: Members 

 
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ____________ and 

supported by Member ________________: 
 

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2023, IUOE Local 324 notified the District that, effective 
immediately, it disclaimed its interest in representing the District’s bus driver bargaining unit; 

 
WHEREAS, on June 8, 2023, Teamsters Local 214 (“Teamsters”) requested that the 

District voluntary recognize Teamsters as the exclusive bargaining representative of the District’s 
“Transportation Department”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Teamsters provided the District with a list of signatures in favor of 

recognition, which signatures appear to be that of a majority of the District’s bus drivers.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

1. □ The Board hereby denies Teamster’s request for voluntary recognition, but Teamsters 
may seek exclusive bargaining representative status by pursuing a union election 
through the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, which election process 
contains procedural safeguards to ensure employee free choice.  

 
□ The Board hereby grants Teamster’s request for voluntary recognition, provided (1) 

Teamster’s request is limited to the same bargaining unit previously represented by 
IOUE Local 324, and (2) the District’s Superintendent or designee confirms that the 
signatures on the above-mentioned list are that of a majority of the District’s bus 
drivers. 

 
2. The Board waives any applicable Board Policies and Bylaws related to voluntary 

recognition.  
 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of 
this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

 
Ayes: Members 
 
Nays: Members  



 

2 
 

 
Resolution declared adopted. 
 

         Secretary, Board of Education 
 
 

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Grand 
Ledge Public Schools, Michigan hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and 
complete copy of a resolution adopted by said Board of Education at a regular meeting held on 
June 26, 2023, the original of which is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further 
certifies that notice of the meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the 
“Open Meetings Act” (Act 267, PA 1976, as amended). 

 
 
 

Secretary, Board of Education 
 



B.  Approval of Resolution Ratifying & Affirming Acceptance of Sale of Bonds Offer 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the            
Resolution Ratifying and Affirming Acceptance of the Sale of Bonds Offer, as presented. 

ROLL CALL VOTE

NEW BUSINESS B

133



 
 

Grand Ledge Public Schools, Eaton, Clinton and Ionia Counties, Michigan (the “Issuer”) 

A regular meeting of the board of education of the Issuer (the “Board”) was held in the 
Board Room, within the boundaries of the Issuer, on the 26th day of June, 2023, at 6 o’clock in 
the p.m. (the “Meeting”). 

The Meeting was called to order by Jarrod Smith, President. 

Present: Members Jarrod Smith, Toni Glasscoe, Nicole Shannon, John Shiflett, 
Denise Dufort, Ben Cwayna, Ashley Kuykendoll 

Absent: Members None 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ___________________ 
and supported by Member ____________________: 

WHEREAS: 

1. By resolution adopted on April 24, 2023 (the “Bond Resolution”), this Board 
authorized the issuance of not to exceed Forty-Nine Million Four Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand 
Dollars ($49,425,000) 2023 School Building and Site Bonds, Series III (the “Bonds”); and 

2. Pursuant to the Bond Resolution, the Issuer delegated authority to the 
Superintendent of Schools and/or the Chief Financial Officer (each an “Authorized Officer”) to 
accept a bid on behalf of this Board for the sale of the Bonds within the parameters established in 
the Bond Resolution; and 

3. On June 1, 2023, the Issuer received seven (7) bids for the purchase of the Bonds, 
which were presented to an Authorized Officer for consideration; and 

4. Based upon the written recommendation of the Issuer's financial consulting firm, 
an Authorized Officer accepted the offer of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., Denver, Colorado (the 
“Purchaser”), to purchase the Bonds pursuant to the authority delegated in the Bond Resolution, 
and the Board desires to ratify and affirm the acceptance of the offer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Authorized Officer’s acceptance of the offer of the Purchaser as set forth in its 
bid, and the terms and conditions set forth therein, presented to the Authorized Officer on June 1, 
2023, to purchase the Bonds at a purchase price of $24,714,204.00, which is the par value of the 
Bonds, plus a net original issue premium of $1,656,744.00, less the Underwriter’s discount of 
$162,540.00 is hereby ratified and affirmed. The Bonds shall be issued in the mutually adjusted 
aggregate principal amount of $23,220,000 and designated 2023 School Building and Site Bonds, 
Series III (General Obligation - Unlimited Tax). Because the Bonds are being issued at a premium 
and a portion of such premium is being deposited into the 2023 Capital Projects Fund, the Board 
hereby acknowledges that only $24,713,971.13 of voter authorization remains for any future bond 
issuance. 



 
 

2 

2. The Bonds shall be dated June 29, 2023, and shall mature on 
November 1 and/or May 1 of the years 2024 through 2042, inclusive, and 2046, on which interest 
is payable commencing November 1, 2023 and semi-annually thereafter on May 1 and November 
1, at the rates and in the principal amounts set forth in Exhibit A and shall be subject to optional 
and mandatory redemption as set forth herein. 

3. The Bonds or portions of Bonds in multiples of $5,000, maturing on or after 
November 1, 2033, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Issuer in 
such order as the Issuer may determine and by lot within any maturity, on any date occurring on 
or after May 1, 2033, at par plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 

4. The Bonds due November 1, 2046, are term bonds subject to mandatory redemption 
in part, by lot, on the redemption dates and in the principal amounts set forth below and at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with interest 
thereon to the redemption date, as set forth below. 

Bonds Due November 1, 2046 
 Redemption Dates Principal Amounts 
 November 1, 2043 $500,000 
 November 1, 2044 500,000 
 November 1, 2045 500,000 
 November 1, 2046 (maturity) 500,000 

When term bonds are purchased by the Issuer and delivered to the Paying Agent for 
cancellation or are redeemed in a manner other than by mandatory redemption, the principal 
amount of the term bonds affected shall be reduced by the principal amount of the Bonds so 
redeemed or purchased in the order determined by the Issuer. 

5. Notice of redemption of any Bond shall be given not less than thirty (30) days and 
not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by mail to the registered 
owner’s or owners’ registered address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent 
(the “Paying Agent”). The Bonds shall be called for redemption in multiples of $5,000, and Bonds 
of denominations of more than $5,000 shall be treated as representing the number of Bonds 
obtained by dividing the denomination of the Bond by $5,000, and such Bonds may be redeemed 
in part. The notice of redemption for Bonds redeemed in part shall state that upon surrender of the 
Bond to be redeemed a new Bond or Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered shall be issued to the registered owner thereof. 

If less than all of the Bonds of any maturity shall be called for redemption, unless otherwise 
provided, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying 
Agent, in such manner as the Paying Agent in its discretion may deem proper, in the principal 
amounts designated by the Issuer. Any Bonds selected for redemption which are deemed to be 
paid in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Resolution and this resolution will cease to 
bear interest on the date fixed for redemption. Upon presentation and surrender of such Bonds at 
the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, such Bonds shall be paid and redeemed. 



 
 

3 

6. Blank Bonds with the manual or facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary 
affixed thereto, shall, at the direction of bond counsel and as necessary, be delivered to the Paying 
Agent for safekeeping to be used for registration and transfer of ownership. 

The Bonds shall be registered as to principal and interest in the name of the Purchaser and 
are transferable as provided in the Bond Resolution only upon the books of the Issuer kept for that 
purpose by the Paying Agent, by the registered owner thereof in person or by an agent of the owner 
duly authorized in writing, upon the surrender of the Bond together with a written instrument of 
transfer satisfactory to the Paying Agent duly executed by the registered owner or agent thereof 
and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in the same aggregate principal amount and of the same 
maturity shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Bond Resolution, 
and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided. The Bonds are issuable in 
denominations of $5,000, or any integral multiple thereof, not exceeding the aggregate principal 
amount for each maturity. 

7. Upon delivery of the Bonds, the accrued interest, if any, shall be deposited in the 
Debt Retirement Fund for the Bonds and the balance of the Bond proceeds shall be used as follows: 

A. The approximate sum of $133,857.74 shall be used to pay the cost of issuance of 
the Bonds, and any balance remaining from that sum after paying the cost of issuance shall be 
deposited in the 2023 Capital Projects Fund. 

B. The sum of $24,580,346.26 shall be deposited to the 2023 Capital Projects Fund. 

8. The Issuer hereby appoints The Huntington National Bank, Grand Rapids, 
Michigan, as Paying Agent-Bond Registrar and directs an Authorized Officer to execute for and 
on behalf of the Issuer a Paying Agent-Bond Registrar Agreement. 

9. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions 
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

 
Ayes:  Members                 

Nays:  Members                  

Resolution declared adopted. 
  
Secretary, Board of Education 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Grand 
Ledge Public Schools, Eaton, Clinton and Ionia Counties, Michigan, hereby certifies that the 
foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, 
the original of which is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice 



 
 

4 

of the Meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 
267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended). 

  
Secretary, Board of Education 

CJI/baf 
  



 
 

5 

EXHIBIT A

 



C.  Approval of Instructional Tools 
  

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the           
Instructional tools and adoption of Amplify Science and MyWorld, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS C

139



Instructional Tool 
Recommendations

June 26, 2023



Rationale
Science
Last k-4 adoption was 2010 (Battle Creek Science Kits)
Battle Creek Science kits are not used with fidelity. PD opportunities lacking
Battle Creek Science kits are not strongly aligned to the NGSS

Social Studies
Current tools vary, but are outdated
Current tools are not aligned to the C3 standards, which were adopted in 2019
No Michigan Specific Materials for grade 3



2 Year Process
2021-2022 school year
● Grade level representatives reviewed materials and piloted materials.
● Recommended MyWorld (K-4) and Amplify Science (k-4) for larger pilots

2022-2023 school year
● Pilot Teachers identified (volunteers): 29 Science; 14 Social studies 
● Pilot teams convene to discuss process and view rubrics and review process
● Teams meet to review process and rubrics
● Teams meet to review tools and make pilot selections
● Pilots established with vendors
● Materials arrive and pilot teachers are trained
● Pilot teams use the materials in their classrooms
● Teachers continue training and support sessions
● Pilot teams convene to assess tools using the rubrics and make recommendations
● Recommendation for board approval



Assessment Resources

The following resources were used to assess the programs represented in this document.

Process for Assessing Science Programs
Process for Assessing Social Studies Programs
Science EQUIP Rubric
Social Studies EQUIP Rubric (Washington State’s modification; we replaced Washington standards 
with C3)
Culturally Responsive STEAM Score Card (Used for math and science)
Culturally Responsive ELA Score Card (specific social studies score card is not available) 



Feedback
● Group was unanimous in its recommendation of Amplify Science k-4

○ Addresses Next Generation Science standards
○ Engaging for students (hand on)
○ Easy for all teachers to use

● The vast majority of group opposed adopting MyWorld Social Studies for Grades K, 1, 2, 4
○ Not engaging for students
○ Not easy to differentiate lessons 
○ Heavy reliance on 0n-Line

● 3rd grade teachers were unanimous in their support for MyWorld at grade 3
○ Access to Michigan specific content



Recommendations for Board Approval

1. Adopt Amplify Science (McGraw Hill) for K - 4

2. Adopt MyWorld Social Studies (Saavas) for Grade 3

The costs of these programs are built into the academic services budget for the 
2023-2024 school year.



Next Steps
If the board approves to adopt MyWorld Social Studies (grade 3), and Amplify Science (K-4), we 
will:

1. work with the vendors to get materials to teachers before the the school year begins
2. set up training throughout the summer and into the fall.

We also recognize there are additional curricular needs in the district. Therefore, we will: 
1. work with vendors to set up additional pilots in social studies , as well as look ahead to 

additional potential social studies pilots at the secondary level.



Questions?



COMMENTS FROM STAFF & BOARD

148



• Board Bond Advisory - Monday, July 10, 2023, 5:00 p.m., Sawdon Room 107 

• Regular Meeting - Monday, July 10, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Board Room (*Only one meeting in July.) 

FUTURE TOPICS

149



Negotiations - Per Section 8(c) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976. 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education move into Closed 
Session for the purpose of discussing Negotiations Strategies, as Per Section 8(c) of the Open Meetings 
Act, PA 267 of 1976. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

CLOSED SESSION

150



   Time:  _________________________

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION

151



A.  Building and Grounds Maintenance Association 

B.  Custodial Association 

C.  Grand Ledge Food Service Unit III, MEA/NEA 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the   
Employee Contracts with the Building and Grounds Maintenance Association, Custodial Association 
and the Grand Ledge Food Service Unit III, MEA/NEA, as presented.

APPROVAL OF EMPLOYEE CONTRACTS

152



   Time:  _________________________

ADJOURNMENT

153


	Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance
	Roll Call
	OPEN - Truth in Taxation/Truth in Budgeting Hearing
	CLOSE - Truth in Taxation / Truth in Budgeting Hearing
	Approval of Agenda items
	Approval of Consent Agenda Items
	Reports
	Public Comment
	Old Business A
	Old Business B
	Old Business C
	Old Business D
	Old Business E
	New Business A
	New Business B
	New Business C
	Comments from Staff & Board
	Future Topics
	Closed Session
	Reconvene in Open Session
	Approval of Employee Contracts
	Adjournment

